
CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 

**Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate 
the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information to 
request this service, please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 

 
MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 

Beloit City Plan Commission 
Wednesday, April 6, 2016 at 7:00 PM 

The Forum 
Beloit City Hall, First Floor 

100 State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the March 23, 2016 Meeting 

3. Certified Survey Map – 2401 Stateline Road 
Review and consideration of a two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 2401 
Stateline Road in the City of Beloit 

4. Stormwater and Drainage Way Easement – 555 Willowbrook Road 
Review and consideration of a request to grant a Stormwater and Drainage Way Easement to 
Hendricks Commercial Properties, LLC along the southern edge of the property located at 555 
Willowbrook Road 

5. Conditional Use Permit – 549 Shirland Avenue 
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Conditional Use Permit to allow a fitness studio 
for the property located at 549 Shirland Avenue (103 Eighth Street) 

6. Planned Unit Development (PUD) Master Land Use Plan Amendment – 1810 Sutler 
Avenue – Tractor Supply (former Staples store) 
Public hearing, review and consideration of an amendment to the Planned Unit Development 
(PUD) Master Land Use Plan to allow for outdoor display areas within the Morgan Square 
shopping center for the property located at 1810 Sutler Avenue 

7. Relocation Order – Branigan Road Re-alignment 
Review and consideration of a Relocation Order to acquire Right-of-Way (ROW) and a 
Temporary Limited Easement (TLE) over a portion of 2851 Milwaukee Road (Menards) and a 
TLE over a portion of 2785 Milwaukee Road (Walmart) in order to Realign the Branigan Road 
Intersection with the Private Driveways  

8. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 

9. Adjournment 

 
If you are unable to attend this meeting, please contact Ashley Rosenbaum in the Planning and Building 
Services Office at 364-6700 no later than 4:00 PM the day before the meeting. 

Notice Mailed:  April 1, 2016 Approved: Julie Christensen, Community 
Development Director 



CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 
MEETING MINUTES 

Beloit City Plan Commission 
Wednesday, March 23, 2016 at 7:00 PM 

The Forum 
Beloit City Hall, First Floor 

100 State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
Chairperson Faragher called the meeting to order at 7:04pm. Commissioners Finnegan, 
Faragher, Ruster, Moore, and Councilor Kincaid were present. Commissioner Johnson was 
absent. 
 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the March 9, 2016 Meeting 
Commissioner Tinder moved to approve the minutes. Commissioner Ruster seconded the 
motion. The motion passed, voice vote.  
 

3. Zoning Ordinance Amendment – Erosion Control and Storm Water Management 
Public hearing, review and consideration of an Ordinance to Repeal and Recreate Sections 8-
900 and 8-1000 of the Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 19, of the Code of General Ordinances of the 
City of Beloit pertaining to construction site erosion control and post-construction storm water 
management. 

Ms. Julie Christensen, Director of Community Development, presented the staff report and 
recommendation.  

Councilor Kincaid inquired into the specifics of any changes in the Ordinances.  William 
Frisbee, Storm Water Engineer, summarized the updates made to the Ordinance.  Essentially, 
the state law changed two years ago.  As a condition of receiving our stormwater permit, we 
are required to update our Ordinance to include those changes.  Bill explained that there were 
no substantive changes to the Ordinance. 

Commissioner Tinder moved to approve the motion. Commissioner Ruster seconded the 
motion. The motion passed, voice vote.  

4. Zoning Ordinance Amendment – Detached Accessory Structure for Garbage & Recycling 
Public hearing, review and consideration of an Ordinance to Amend Section 6.3.4(d) of the 
Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 19 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit Relating 
to Detached Accessory Buildings for Garbage and Recycling Storage 

Ms. Julie Christensen, Director of Community Development, presented the staff report and 
recommendation.  

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

Chairperson Faragher asked if there were a large number of these structures to be expected. 
Ms. Christensen stated that there were not.  

Councilor Kincaid inquired into whether screening would be permissible. Ms. Christensen 
stated that they would be; however, a fence permit would be necessary.  

Commissioner Ruster moved to approve the motion. Commissioner Tinder seconded the 
motion. The motion passed, voice vote.  

5. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 
The street vacation on West Grand Avenue was approved by City Council.  

6. Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 7:20pm.  

 



April 6 Staff Report 3, CSM, 2401 Stateline Road 

CITY OF BELOIT 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
Meeting Date: April 6, 2016 
 

Agenda Item: 3 File Number: CSM-2016-03 

Applicant: RH Batterman (on behalf 
of Hendricks Commercial Properties, 
LLC) 

Owner: City of Beloit (Hendricks 
Commercial Properties, LLC to 
purchase) 

Location: 2401 Stateline Road 

Existing Zoning: M-2, General 
Manufacturing District 

Existing Land Use: Agricultural Total Area: 31.59 Acres 

 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
RH Batterman, on behalf of Hendricks Commercial Properties, LLC (HCP), has submitted an Application for the Review of 
a Minor Subdivision and a two-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the property located at 2401 Stateline Road in the City 
of Beloit. The proposed CSM is related to the Stormwater and Drainage Way Easement request for 555 Willowbrook 
Road. According to Section 12.05(1)(b) of the Subdivision Ordinance, the Plan Commission may approve, conditionally 
approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land within the City or within the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction where there is 
no dedication of land to the City. 
 
 
Key Issues: 

 The area of the existing parcel located at 2401 Stateline Road is 31.59 acres. 
o Proposed Lot 1 will be approximately 14.78 acres and have frontage on Stateline Road and I-39/90. 

The lot will be addressed as 2401 Stateline Road. 
o Proposed Lot 2 will be approximately 16.81 acres and have frontage on both Stateline Road and 

Willowbrook Road. The lot will be addressed as 375 Willowbrook Road. 
 A Purchase and Sale Agreement between the City and HCP for the subject parcel was considered by City Council 

at the April 4, 2016 meeting. 
 The subject Purchase and Sale Agreement contains property division and development obligations to be fulfilled 

by the buyer, HCP, within the first 36 months of ownership.  
 The intent of the proposed CSM is to fulfill the obligations of the Purchase and Sale Agreement and to allow for 

the construction of two buildings on the site. 
o HCP has submitted site plans to Staff for a project involving the construction of a 105,000 sq. ft. 

manufacturing spec building to be located on proposed Lot 1. 
 The forty (40) foot Ingress/Egress Easement on the shared property line will provide both Proposed Lot 1 and 

Proposed Lot 2 with access to Stateline Road.  
 The City’s Review Agents have reviewed the proposed CSM and do not have any comments. 
 The application, Location and Zoning Map, and proposed CSM are attached to this report. 

  
Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  
The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map designates the subject property as appropriate for Community 
Commercial uses. Although the proposed manufacturing spec building will likely have a use consistent with the 
recommended use, the M-2, General Manufacturing zoning will allow for the future industrial development intended for the 
lots. Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5. 
 

Sustainability: 
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – The two proposed lots are 

situated in a prime location that will be attractive to businesses that want I-39/90 exposure, transportation access, 
and large-sized lots. 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the 
property located at 2401 Stateline Road in the City of Beloit, subject to the following conditions: 

1. The final CSM shall substantially conform to the preliminary CSM submitted with this application for review. 
2. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 31, 2016. 



April 6 Staff Report 3, CSM, 2401 Stateline Road 

 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 
 

Attachments: Location Map, CSM, Application, Resolution 
 

  



April 6 Staff Report 3, CSM, 2401 Stateline Road 

 



April 6 Staff Report 3, CSM, 2401 Stateline Road 

  



April 6 Staff Report 3, CSM, 2401 Stateline Road 

  



April 6 Staff Report 3, CSM, 2401 Stateline Road 

  



April 6 Staff Report 3, CSM, 2401 Stateline Road 

  



April 6 Staff Report 3, CSM, 2401 Stateline Road 

 

  



April 6 Staff Report 3, CSM, 2401 Stateline Road 

 



April 6 Staff Report 3, CSM, 2401 Stateline Road 

RESOLUTION 

APPROVING A TWO-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 

FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT  

2401 STATELINE ROAD IN THE CITY OF BELOIT 

 

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the 

City of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan 

Commission of the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor 

subdivision of land within the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 2401 

Stateline Road, containing 31.59 acres, more or less, is located within the jurisdiction of the City 

of Beloit; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the proposed 

two-lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 

  
LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP DOC. NO. 1073578 AS RECORDED IN VOLUME 13 ON 

PAGES 268-270 ½ OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAPS, BEING PART OF THE S.E. ¼ OF SECTION 31, 

T. 1 N., R. 13 E. OF THE FOURTH P.M., CITY OF BELOIT, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN. 

Containing 31.59 acres, more or less. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of 

Beloit does hereby conditionally approve the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the 

property located at 2401 Stateline Road in the City of Beloit, subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. The final CSM shall substantially conform to the preliminary CSM submitted with this 

application for review. 

2. The applicant shall record the CSM with the Rock County Register of Deeds and shall 

provide the Planning and Building Services Division with a copy of the recorded CSM by 

December 31, 2016. 

 

Adopted this 6
th 

day of April 2016. 

 

 

   

  James Faragher, Plan Commission Chairman 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

  

Julie Christensen, 

Community Development Director 



CITY OF BELOIT 
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
Meeting Date:  April 6, 2016 
 

Agenda Item:  4 
 

File Number:  RPB-2016-01 
 

Applicant:  RH Batterman (on behalf of 
Hendricks Commercial Properties) 
 

Current Owner:  City of Beloit 
 

Location:  555 Willowbrook Road 
 

Existing Zoning:  M-2, General 
Manufacturing District 

Existing Land Use:  Utility 
 

Parcel Size:  60 Acres 

  
Request Overview/Background Information: 
Hendricks Commercial Properties (HCP) has requested that a Stormwater and Drainage Way Easement be established 
along the southern edge of the property located at 555 Willowbrook Road. The Beloit Water Pollution Control Facility 
(WPCF) is located on the subject, city-owned property. 
 
 
Key Issues: 

 The easement request is related to a 2-lot CSM submitted by RH Batterman, on behalf of HCP, for the land 
directly south of the WPCF property located at 2401 Stateline Road. This request is being considered 
concurrently with the proposed CSM.   

o A purchase and sale agreement for the property located at 2401 Stateline Road was considered by City 
Council at the April 4, 2016 meeting. 

o HCP has submitted plans to City staff for the construction of an industrial spec building on one of the 
proposed lots. 

o HCP has requested this easement in order to redirect all I-39/90 stormwater from their proposed building 
site to a drainage swale on the south side of the WPCF property. 

o The proposed easement also allows HCP to construct a stormwater detention area on the WPCF site. 
 HCP, the easement grantee, would be responsible for regular maintenance of the stormwater infrastructure 

located on the conveyed land. 
 The City, the easement grantor, would be responsible for any extraordinary costs for maintenance due to wash 

outs, culvert cleanout, substantial debris removal or other damage due to excess water flow from upstream 
development in the drainage way portion of the easement area. 

 HCP would be required to maintain a general liability insurance policy for the conveyed land and any activities 
located in the easement area. 

 The City Council will review this request on April 18, 2016. 
 
  
Consistency with Strategic Plan:  

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5. 
 

Sustainability:  
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels - N/A 
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature - N/A 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – The proposed easement will ensure 

that future development meets the City’s stormwater and drainage standards that help protect the environment from 
pollution run-off. 

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently - N/A 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached Stormwater and Drainage Way Easement 
along the south side of the property located at 555 Willowbrook Road. 
 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:  N/A 
 

Attachments: 
Location and Zoning Map, Easement Document and Easement Exhibit 

 
April 6 Staff Report 4, RPB, 555 Willowbrook Road 



 



 
 
 
 
 
 
                DOCUMENT NO. 

 

                     DOCUMENT TITLE 
 

STORMWATER AND DRAINAGE WAY 
EASEMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

RECORDING AREA 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NAME AND RETURN ADDRESS 
 
 

                                 

Parcel Identification Number  
                 
  



STORMWATER AND DRAINAGE WAY EASEMENT (“EASEMENT”) 
 

 

 For and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is acknowledged, City of Beloit 

(“Grantor”) for itself and its successors and assigns, grants and conveys onto Hendricks 

Commercial Properties, LLC (“Grantee”), its successors and assigns, a perpetual non-

exclusive easement across, over and upon the property depicted on Exhibit A (“Easement 

Area”), attached hereto and made a part hereof, for the purpose of siting and maintaining 

storm water management facilities, including the grading, grass seeding and lawn 

maintenance of the Easement Area, including placement and grading of dirt for a berm 

and drainage way, the planting of grass cover and/or other drainage improvements subject 

to applicable legal requirements, if any, to facilitate proper drainage pursuant to an 

approved grading plan  Grantor and Grantee acknowledge that the Easement Area 

includes both areas depicted for (i) storm water detention “Stormwater Easement” as well 

as areas depicted for (ii) drainage ways “Drainage Way Easement” to provide for proper 

drainage of both a portion of Grantor’s property as well as I-90/I-39 highway runoff 

drainage (collectively the “Storm Water Facilities.”)  The Drainage Way Easement as 

depicted in the Easement Area is designed to facilitate such future water flow.   

Grantee shall have the right to enter the Easement Area to survey, construct, 

reconstruct, operate, use, maintain, repair, upgrade, replace, and remove the Storm Water 

Facilities made within the Easement Area.  Grantee shall maintain the Storm Water 

Facilities in a safe and attractive condition and in compliance with all applicable laws and 

regulations. Without limiting the generality of the preceding, existing and applicable future 

improvements constructed by the Grantee shall meet or exceed all applicable 



requirements and specifications of all stormwater management laws, regulations or 

guidelines.  Any future improvements constructed by the Grantee shall be at the Grantee’s 

sole cost and expense. 

Except as provided below, Grantee shall, at its sole cost and expense, construct 

and maintain the Storm Water Facilities.  Grantor shall have the right to inspect and 

monitor any construction activities over and around the city-owned electric lines in the 

Easement Area.  Grantor reserves the right to perform Grantee’s maintenance 

responsibility in the event that Grantee fails to maintain the Storm Water Facilities.  Prior to 

implementing this self-help remedy, Grantor shall notify Grantee and provide to Grantee 

the right, within fifteen (15) days of notice, to cure the deficiency.  If Grantee fails to 

adequately maintain the Storm Water Facilities and within fifteen (15) days after the date 

of the written notice from Grantor, fails to correct the problem, or fails to begin to cure the 

problem with fifteen (15) days if such problem cannot be reasonably cured within fifteen 

(15) days and fails to diligently pursue such cure, Grantor shall have the right to perform 

the necessary work.  Grantee shall reimburse Grantor for the reasonable cost of such 

maintenance cure.  If Grantee fails to reimburse Grantor for the cost of such maintenance, 

Grantor reserves the right to assess the cost of any such work as a special charge against 

the property identified as Lot 1 and 2 of Preliminary Certified Survey Map Property 

attached hereto as Exhibit A pursuant to §66.0627, Wis. Stats., and shall be included in 

the current or next tax roll for collection and settlement under Ch. 74, Wis. Stats.  Grantee 

waives any right to contest such special charge provided it was given an opportunity to 

undertake the work and failed to do so within the time identified in the such notice.  

Grantee further agrees that Grantor may also pursue any and all other remedies available 

at law or in equity.   



Notwithstanding the above, any extraordinary costs associated with maintaining the 

Drainage Way Easement, including regrading due to wash out, culvert cleanout, 

substantial debris removal or other damage due to excess water flow, increased water 

flow due to upstream development, whether from Grantor’s property, from I-90/I-39 or 

other upstream property which is authorized by the City to drain through this drainage way, 

shall be at the expense of Grantor.  Grantor and Grantee agree to meet and confer from 

time to time when it is asserted that Grantor is responsible for such extraordinary events.     

This Easement may not be modified or amended except by writing executed and 

delivered by the Grantor and Grantee, their respective successors and assigns.   

 Grantee shall release and defend, indemnify and hold harmless Grantor and its 

respective successors and assigns, from and against any and all claim, cost, expense, 

damage and liability that Grantor may incur as a result of any act or omission by Grantee, 

its agents, employees, invitees occurring on, over, upon, along, under or across the 

easement area in connection with Grantee’s use of this easement.  

 Grantee shall, at all times this Agreement is in effect, maintain a policy of general 

liability insurance with respect to the Easement Area and Grantee’s activities upon the 

Easement Area.  The amount of insurance shall be $1,000,000 and shall be increased to 

an amount then commercially reasonable upon notice from Grantor.  Such policy shall 

name Grantor as an additional named insured.  All such policies shall provide that they 

shall not be amended or terminated except upon at least 30 days’ prior written notice to 

Grantor.  Grantee shall provide evidence of this coverage to Grantor within 30 days of the 

execution of this Agreement and upon request of Grantor thereafter.  

Grantor acknowledges that municipal approval and all action necessary to 

authorize the granting of this easement has been duly performed.  Signatory on behalf of 



Grantor is the duly authorized representative of Grantor. Grantee acknowledges that 

approval and all action necessary to authorize the acceptance of this easement and its 

attendant obligations has been duly performed.  Signatory on behalf of Grantee is the duly 

authorized representative of Grantee. 

  This Easement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be 

deemed an original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute one and the same 

Easement.  Any counterparts of this Easement may be executed and delivered by any 

party by facsimile or by e-mail transmission in portable document format “(PDF”) and any 

document so executed and delivered shall be considered an original for all purposes. 

 Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted in such a 

manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but it any provision of this 

Agreement is held to be prohibited by or invalid under applicable law, such provision shall 

be ineffective only to the extent such prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating the 

remainder of this Agreement. 

 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted, construed and enforced in 

accordance with the internal laws of the State of Wisconsin.  All the terms, conditions and 

provisions of this Agreement relating to this Easement shall be appurtenant to and shall 

inure to the benefit of and shall run with the land.   

 This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties hereto. 

 

{Signature pages to follow} 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has hereunder set its hand and seal this 

____ day of ____________, 2016. 

      
      GRANTOR: 

CITY OF BELOIT 
 

By:__________________________________ 
      Lori S. Curtis Luther, City Manager 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By:__________________________________ 

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk 
 

STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 
    )  SS. 
ROCK COUNTY  ) 
 
 Before me personally appeared on the ____ day of _______________, 2016, Lori 
S. Curtis Luther and Lorena Rae Stottler , the City Manager and City Clerk of City of Beloit 
and the person who executed the foregoing LANDSCAPE AND DRAINAGE WAY 
EASEMENT and acknowledged the same as the voluntary act and deed of said City of 
Beloit.   
 
 
              
       Elizabeth A. Krueger 

Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
       My Commission is permanent. 
  



GRANTEE: 
HENDRICKS COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES, 
LLC 
 
 
By:        
 Diane M. Hendricks, Manager and 
 Chairperson of the Board 

 
STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 
    )  SS. 
ROCK COUNTY  ) 
 
 Before me personally appeared on the ____ day of _______________, 2016, 
Diane M. Hendricks the Manager and Chairperson of the Board of Hendricks Commercial 
Properties, LLC and the person who executed the foregoing LANDSCAPE AND 
DRAINAGE WAY EASEMENT and acknowledged the same as the voluntary act and deed 
of said Hendricks Commercial Properties, LLC.   
 
 
              
       Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
       My Commission      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This instrument was drafted by and 
after recording return to: 
 
George B. Erwin, III 
Schmidt, Darling & Erwin 
2300 North Mayfair Road 
Suite 1175 
Milwaukee, WI  53226 

 



EXHIBIT A - Easement Area 



April 6 Staff Report 5, CU, 103 Eight Street 

 

 

CITY OF BELOIT 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
Meeting Date: April 6, 2016 
 

Agenda Item: 5 File Number: CU-2016-01 

Applicant: Anabel Salgado 
 

Owner: Anabel Salgado Location: 103 Eighth Street 

Existing Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family 
Residential District 
 

Existing Land Use:  
Commercial, East Side of Building 
Residential, West Side of Building 

Parcel Size: .27 Acre 

  
Anabel Salgado has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a fitness studio in an R-1B, Single-Family 
Residential District, for the property located at 549 Shirland Avenue (103 Eighth Street) in the City of Beloit. The applicant 
is seeking permission to hold a single daily, one-hour class. The adjacent zoning and land uses are as follows: 
 

 North: R-1B, Single-Family Residential 
 South: South Beloit, Commercial/Residential 
 East: R-1B, Single-Family Residential 
 West: R-1B, Single-Family Residential   

 
  
Key Issues: 

 The applicant is seeking permission to hold fitness classes in the garage attached to the commercial building. 
o The applicant has stated the intent to hold one hour-long exercise class for one hour daily, with the 

possibility of additional classes being added. 
o The space will not function as a traditional gym or fitness center, but will instead provide an indoor area to 

hold classes like Zumba that do not need traditional gym equipment. 
 A clothing store currently occupies a part of the commercial building on the subject property and is a legal non-

conforming use.  
 According to Section 9.2.1 of the Zoning Code (Chapter 19), a legal non-conforming use may be altered in 

accordance with the conditional use procedures if the new use will have a “lesser negative impact”. 
o The operation of a new business constitutes a change in the non-conforming use for the property and 

therefore requires the applicant to obtain a Conditional Use Permit. 
 The applicant is seeking permission to hold fitness classes in the garage attached to the commercial building. 
 The minimum off-street parking requirements for a fitness studio, classified as a Retail Sales/Service – 

Entertainment Oriented use, is one parking space per 150 sq. ft.  The garage area where the exercise classes will 
be held is approximately 350 sq. ft. and therefore requires 3 parking spaces. The existing lot has enough space to 
fulfill the parking requirements for both uses on the property. 

 The Fire Department commented that a new fire exit plan for the new occupancy is required if the exit routes 
change. The City’s other Review Agents did not submit any comments on the proposed use. 

 The attached Public Notice was sent to seventeen nearby property owners. Planning staff has not received any 
comments. 

 A Location & Zoning Map and site photos are attached. 
 Findings of Fact 

o Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be detrimental to or 
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare; 

 Planning Staff feels that general public health and safety will not be negatively impacted by the 
proposed fitness studio. Instead, the studio has the potential to positively impact the general 
public health in the surrounding neighborhood by adding a close, convenient space to exercise. 

o Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate 
vicinity for purposes already permitted; 

 The conditional use will not injure the use and enjoyment of nearby properties as the use will be 
entirely contained to the garage space. 

o Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood 
of the subject property; 

 The property is already being used by a commercial business and the addition of a low-intensity 
use would not diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood. 

o Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of the surrounding property; 

 The structure is located in a fully developed area. 



April 6 Staff Report 5, CU, 103 Eight Street 

 

 

o Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is so dissimilar or 
otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the immediate neighborhood that it will 
cause a depreciation in property values; 

 Not applicable. 
o Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be available to serve 

the proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use; 
 The building where the garage space is located already is adequately served by utilities and will 

not require new infrastructure. 
o Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and  

 The subject property has adequate space to handle the anticipated demand for parking and 
should not have a noticeable impact on traffic on Shirland Avenue.  

o Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 The conditional use will comply with all other applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.  

 

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  

 The Comprehensive Plan recommends Single-Family Residential (Urban) uses. The underlying zoning district 
classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, as required by Section 66.1001(3) of Wisconsin 
Statutes.  Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5. 

 

Sustainability: 
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – The fitness studio will fill a 

currently unused space and will provide residents in the neighborhood with a convenient, nearby location to take 
exercise classes. 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow the operation of 
a fitness studio, classified as a Retail Sales/Service – Entertainment Oriented use, in an R-1B Single-Family Residential 
District, for the property located at 549 Shirland Avenue, based on the above Findings of Fact, under the following 
conditions of approval: 

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes the operation of a fitness studio in the attached garage on the 
commercial building located at 549 Shirland Avenue. 

2. The applicant must obtain an Architectural Review Certificate for any proposed signage. 
3. Classes may only be held between the hours of 6:00am and 10:00pm. 
4. The fitness studio must adhere to the noise regulations in accordance with Section 15.12 of the Municipal 

Code (Chapter 15, Public Peace and Good Order) 
5. Customers must park in the designated parking lot on the property. 
6. If City Staff receives frequent complaints about parking or excessive noise from neighbors or observes any 

illegal parking or unreasonable loud activity at the property, this Conditional Use Permit shall be null and void 
and the site shall be restored to its prior condition. This restoration order shall only be issued after the Plan 
Commission has reviewed the complaints and the applicant has been afforded the opportunity to explain 
and/or cure the circumstances giving rise the parking or noise issues. 

7. A Building Official must perform an inspection to ensure the space is adequately lit and ventilated before the 
use is established. 

8. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan 
Commission and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Planning and Building Services 
Director may approve minor changes administratively.  

 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: 
N/A 
 

Attachments: 
Location & Zoning Map, CUP Application, Site Photos, Public Notice, and Mailing List 
 
 

 

 



April 6 Staff Report 5, CU, 103 Eight Street 

 

 

 



April 6 Staff Report 5, CU, 103 Eight Street 

 

 

 

 

 



April 6 Staff Report 5, CU, 103 Eight Street 

 

 

 



April 6 Staff Report 5, CU, 103 Eight Street 

 

 

Site Photos – 549 Shirland Ave – Garage on north side of building  



April 6 Staff Report 5, CU, 103 Eight Street 

 

 

 

      Site Photos – 549 Shirland Ave – Attached garage space 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



April 6 Staff Report 5, CU, 103 Eight Street 

 

 

 

 

 

 

March 21, 2016 

 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 
 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

 

Anabel Salgado has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the holding of dance 

classes in an R-1B, Single-Family Residential District, for the property located at: 

 

549 Shirland Avenue. 

 

A Conditional Use Permit is required for the change of a legal non-conforming use on a property. A 

clothing store, an existing legal non-conforming use, currently operates on the property. Holding dance 

classes in a space adjacent to the clothing store but on the same property would change the non-

conforming use of property.  Therefore, the applicant is required to obtain a Conditional Use Permit in 

order to hold dance classes on the property. The following public hearings will be held regarding this 

proposed Conditional Use Permit: 

 

City Plan Commission:  Wednesday, April 6, 2016 at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the matter can be 

heard in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 

 

City Council:  Monday, April 18, 2016 at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the matter can be heard in 

The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 

 

 

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND THESE HEARINGS. 
 

We are interested in your opinion. 
 

Anyone bringing handouts to the Plan Commission meeting must bring ten (10) copies and submit them 

to the Recording Secretary before the meeting begins.  Staff is unable to leave the meeting area to make 

copies. 

 

For additional information, please contact Alex Morganroth in the Planning Division at (608) 364-

6708 or morganrotha@beloitwi.gov.  Comments will be accepted via telephone, email, and U.S. Mail. 
 

 

  

mailto:morganrotha@beloitwi.gov


April 6 Staff Report 5, CU, 103 Eight Street 

 

 

 

 

MARIO & MERCEDES 

VIRAMONTES 

133 EIGHTH ST 

BELOIT, WI 53511 

 
 

JOAN RICE 

923 WILLIAM ST 

BELOIT, WI 53511 

 
 

EDWARD & BEVERLY 

MULLIGAN 

4344 E WOOD TRL 

BELOIT, WI 53511 

 

PHAY SHU 

2121 MILTON AVE STE 140 

JANESVILLE, WI 53545 

 
 

MARK & CECILIA JOY 

127 EIGHTH ST 

BELOIT, WI 53511 

 
 

BETTY JANE KLIINE 

4619 NW 40TH TERR 

GAINESVILLE, FL 32606 

 

JUAN & MARIA D COLON 

COLON-ACATITLAN 

414 MIDDLE ST 

BELOIT, WI 53511 

 
 

WENDY SVEOM 

106 EIGHTH ST 

BELOIT, WI 53511 

 
 

 FPS RENTAL INC 

P O BOX 41 

BELOIT, WI 53512 

 

JAMES A & JANET C WRIGHT 

550 KENWOOD AVE 

BELOIT, WI 53511 

 
 

JAMES HAGY 

7236 E FOXHOLLOW RD 

CLINTON, WI 53525 

 
 

ALLAN & KATHRYN BARTZ 

2150 THOMAS RD 

BELOIT, WI 53511 

 

RICHARD HULBERT 

10251 W CTY K 

BELOIT, WI 53511 

 
 

DAVID N & JENNIFER L BAACK 

W1703 ST PETERS RD 

EAST TROY, WI 53120 

 
 

DAVID TYRER 

3550 S AFTON RD 

BELOIT, WI 53511 

 

ROGELIO & ELSA MORENO 

1819 MCKINLEY AVE 

BELOIT, WI 53511 

 
 

JUANITA ROBBINS 

1767 WISCONSIN AVE 

BELOIT, WI 53511 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 



April 6 Staff Report 6, PUD, Morgan Square Outdoor Displays, 1810 Sutler Avenue 

 

CITY OF BELOIT 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
Meeting Date: April 6, 2016 
 

Agenda Item: 6 File Number: PUD-2016-02 

Applicant: Tractor Supply Company 
 

Owner: Morgan Square LLC Location: 1810 Sutler Avenue 
 

Existing Zoning: PUD Existing Land Use: Commercial Parcel Size: 9.58 Acres 
 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
Tractor Supply Company has submitted an amended Planned Unit Development (PUD) - Master Land Use Plan to allow 
outdoor display areas within the Morgan Square shopping center located at 1810 Sutler Avenue. A copy of the amended 
PUD - Master Land Use Plan is attached to this report. The PUD District is a special-purpose zoning district that permits 
greater flexibility in land planning and site design than conventional zoning districts and provides flexibility in land uses. 
 
 
Key Issues: 

 The Staples store at the southern end of Morgan Square closed in March 2016. The owner of Morgan Square has 
entered into a preliminary agreement with Tractor Supply Company, who hopes to lease the former Staples 
space. As shown on the attached PUD plan, Tractor Supply Company has proposed a 1,944 square-foot trailer & 
equipment display area and a fenced 14,823 square-foot outdoor display area over what is currently passenger 
vehicle parking stalls. 

 The proposed retail store and sidewalk display of outdoor items are permitted uses in the existing PUD. However, 
the proposed outdoor display areas constitute a major change in use that requires approval of an amended PUD 
– Master Land Use Plan, as outlined by condition #5 of the attached 2002 Resolution approving this PUD. 

 Proposed Trailer & Equipment Display Area:  As shown in the attached photos, the proposed 1,944 square-
foot trailer & equipment display area will be used to display utility trailers and agricultural equipment (e.g. plows, 
mowers, spreaders, cultivators, etc.) available for purchase, and will be located to the SE of the store. This area 
was originally proposed along Milwaukee Road, but the applicant agreed to Planning staff’s request to relocate 
the trailer & equipment display area closer to the store entrance. Planning staff is recommending a condition of 
approval to formalize this compromise. 

 Proposed Fenced Outdoor Display area:  As shown in the attached photos, the proposed 14,823 square-foot 
fenced outdoor display area will be used to display fence materials, pet & livestock equipment, and 
miscellaneous/seasonal items, and will be located to the south of the store. The applicant has agreed to Planning 
staff’s request to construct a decorative fence consisting of wrought-iron or similar fencing between brick columns 
that match the Morgan Square design theme. The applicant also agreed to install perforated metal panels along 
the south (street) side and west (Morgan School) side of the fence in order to screen the outdoor display area. A 
photo of the agreed upon fence design is attached. Planning staff is recommending a condition of approval to 
formalize this compromise. 

 Off-Street Parking Requirements:  According to Section 8-103 of the Zoning Ordinance, retail uses must 
include at least 1 off-street parking stall per 250 square feet of floor area. Although the proposed PUD would 
eliminate some existing off-street parking stalls, the proposed PUD includes 97 off-street parking stalls to serve 
this vacant 24,000 square-foot building, which would satisfy this requirement. 

 Pedestrian Access/Sidewalk Considerations:  Planning staff is recommending a condition of approval that will 
require the preservation of the existing private sidewalk connections on the Morgan Square property. 

 Review Agents’ Comments: 
o Charter Communications reviewed the applicant’s proposal and requested that the applicant avoid all 

existing Charter infrastructure when constructing the fence. 
o The Fire Department reviewed the applicant’s proposal and expressed concern about impaired access to 

the Fire Department Connection (FDC) at the rear of the store due to air conditioning units & electrical 
boxes. The Fire Department requested that the FDC be extended to a nearby location free of 
obstructions. 

o The City Engineer reviewed the applicant’s proposal and expressed concern about existing cut-through 
traffic mixing with the potential increase in truck & trailer traffic associated with the applicant’s deliveries 
and customers. In order to promote traffic safety, the City Engineer requested the closure of one driveway 
opening (shown in red) and the installation of new stop bars (shown in red), as outlined on the Traffic 
Control Recommendations attachment. 

 The attached Public Notice was sent to property owners within 150 feet of Morgan Square. Planning staff has not 
received any comments or concerns as of this writing. 



April 6 Staff Report 6, PUD, Morgan Square Outdoor Displays, 1810 Sutler Avenue 

 Section 5-305 of the Zoning Ordinance requires the City Council to establish development standards during the 
PUD process. Development standards are addressed in the Staff Recommendation section of this report. 

 Section 2-402(g) of the Zoning Ordinance allows for the approval of a PUD - Master Land Use Plan if the 
following five criteria can be met: 

o The plan represents an improvement over what could have been accomplished through strict 
application of otherwise applicable standards, based on the purpose and intent of the Zoning 
Ordinance. Planning staff is recommending several conditions of approval that will protect the character, 
appearance, and function of this urban shopping center following the introduction of agricultural 
equipment, vehicles, and other items that have the potential to create a cluttered & chaotic retail site. 

o The PUD - Master Land Use Plan complies with the standards of Section 5-300. The PUD - Master 
Land Use Plan complies with the standards of Section 5-300. 

o Service providers will be able to provide necessary public services, facilities, and programs to 
serve the development proposed. Planning staff has drafted several conditions of approval that will 
address the review agents’ concerns related to the proposed outdoor display areas and their impact upon 
fire protection and traffic safety, specifically the relocation of the FDC and new traffic control measures. 

o The development is consistent with and implements the planning goals and objectives contained 
in the Comprehensive Plan and other adopted policies and documents.  See section below. 

o The PUD - Master Land Use Plan is consistent with sound planning practice and the development 
will promote the general welfare of the community. The subject property is located on the main 
arterial into Beloit, within a commercial district that has experienced tremendous public & private 
investment during the past five years. So long as the applicant and/or owner comply with the 
recommended conditions of approval below, the applicant’s proposed outdoor display areas will be 
compatible with surrounding land uses and are preferable to a vacant retail building. 

 
 
Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  
The Comprehensive Plan recommends Community Commercial uses for the Morgan Square site, and the requested PUD 
Amendment is consistent with this recommendation. Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5. 
 

Sustainability: 
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the amended PUD - Master Land Use Plan to allow 
outdoor display areas within the Morgan Square shopping center located at 1810 Sutler Avenue, based on its consistency 
with the Zoning Ordinance and subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. This approval authorizes the 1,944 square-foot trailer & equipment display area and fenced 14,823 square-foot 
outdoor display area as shown on the application, provided the outdoor display area is surrounded by a wrought 
iron (or similar) fence with screening at least six feet in height with brick columns that match the existing bricks in 
the Morgan Square development. An Architectural Review Certificate and Fence Permit are required. 

2. Trailers & equipment may only be stored in the approved display area, which must be concrete with curb & gutter. 
3. All existing private sidewalks shall be preserved, and a clear path of travel must be maintained at all times. The 

sidewalk displays may not interfere with a clear 4-foot pedestrian pathway to/from the store entrance. 
4. No outdoor display of any kind is allowed in the parking lot, or in any unauthorized outdoor display area. 
5. Prior to occupancy, the applicant and/or owner shall relocate the FDC to a location approved by the Fire Chief. 
6. Prior to occupancy, the applicant and/or owner shall install the traffic control measures required by Engineering. 
7. All other approved uses and conditions associated with the original PUD approval remain in full force and effect. 
8. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan Commission 

and City Council by amending this PUD – Master Land Use Plan. The Director of Planning & Building Services 
may approve minor changes administratively and allow accessory structures and uses that comply with and meet 
all of the standards and requirements of the City of Beloit Municipal Code. 

 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 
 

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Photo of Fence Type, Photos of Site, Photos of Display Area Examples, Proposed 
PUD – Master Land Use Plan, Traffic Control Recommendations, Application, 2002 PUD Resolution, and Public Notice. 
 



 

April 6 Staff Report 6, PUD, Morgan Square Outdoor Displays, 1810 Sutler Avenue 



 

April 6 Staff Report 6, PUD, Morgan Square Outdoor Displays, 1810 Sutler Avenue 

Proposed Fence Type – Outdoor Display Area 
 

 



 

April 6 Staff Report 6, PUD, Morgan Square Outdoor Displays, 1810 Sutler Avenue 

Photos of Former Staples Parking Lot 
 

 
 

 

 



 

April 6 Staff Report 6, PUD, Morgan Square Outdoor Displays, 1810 Sutler Avenue 

Photos – Examples of Trailer/Equipment Display Area 
 

 
 

 
 



 

April 6 Staff Report 6, PUD, Morgan Square Outdoor Displays, 1810 Sutler Avenue 

Photos – Examples of Fenced Outdoor Display Area 
 

 
 

 



 

April 6 Staff Report 6, PUD, Morgan Square Outdoor Displays, 1810 Sutler Avenue 

 

 

2016 Proposed Amended PUD Plan 



 

April 6 Staff Report 6, PUD, Morgan Square Outdoor Displays, 1810 Sutler Avenue 

 

 
 

 



 

April 6 Staff Report 6, PUD, Morgan Square Outdoor Displays, 1810 Sutler Avenue 

Traffic Control Recommendations From City Engineer 
 

 

Close Opening – Expand 

Landscaping 

Stop Bars 



 

April 6 Staff Report 6, PUD, Morgan Square Outdoor Displays, 1810 Sutler Avenue 

 



 

April 6 Staff Report 6, PUD, Morgan Square Outdoor Displays, 1810 Sutler Avenue 

 



 

April 6 Staff Report 6, PUD, Morgan Square Outdoor Displays, 1810 Sutler Avenue 



 

April 6 Staff Report 6, PUD, Morgan Square Outdoor Displays, 1810 Sutler Avenue 

 
 



April 6 Staff Report 7, Relocation Order, Branigan Road Realignment   

 

CITY OF BELOIT 
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
Meeting Date: April 6, 2016 Agenda Item: 7 File Number: RPB-2016-02 

 
Applicant: Engineering Division Owners: Menards & Walmart Location: Branigan Road 
 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
The Engineering Division has requested the review and approval of Relocation Orders to acquire Right-of-Way (ROW) 
and a Temporary Limited Easement (TLE) over a portion of the Menards property at 2851 Milwaukee Road and a TLE 
over a portion of the Walmart property at 2785 Milwaukee Road in order to realign the Branigan Road intersection with the 
private driveways serving the subject properties. A Relocation Order is one of the first steps in the Eminent Domain 
process. 
 
 
Key Issues: 

 Currently, the Branigan Road ROW ends where the McDonalds, Menards, and Walmart driveways intersect in an 
awkward 5-point intersection. The proposed Relocation Order would extend the Branigan Road ROW by 60 feet 
in order to realign this problematic intersection as shown on the attached plat maps. 

 The first proposed Relocation Order involves the acquisition of 4,200 square feet of Menards’ property to be used 
as public ROW to extend Branigan Road. 

 The second proposed Relocation Order involves the acquisition of an easement (TLE) over 5,014 square feet of 
Menards’ property to allow the alteration/realignment of the privately owned driveway and the acquisition of a 
TLE over approximately 1 acre of Walmart’s property to allow the alteration/realignment of the privately owned 
driveway. As shown on the attachments, the proposed alteration of the Walmart driveway is more significant and 
involves changes to pavement, curb & gutter, landscape islands, and pavement marking. 

 All affected properties will retain full access at the conclusion of this project, and public safety & traffic flow will be 
greatly improved. 

 
  
Consistency with Strategic Plan:  

 Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5. 
 

Sustainability: 
 

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached Relocation Orders to acquire Right-of-
Way and a Temporary Limited Easement over a portion of the Menards property at 2851 Milwaukee Road and a 
Temporary Limited Easement over a portion of the Walmart property at 2785 Milwaukee Road. 
 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: This $325,000 project is located in TIF 13 will be funded by the 2016 CIP. 
 

Attachments: Relocation Plat Maps (ROW in red, TLE in green) and Proposed Relocation Orders 
 



April 6 Staff Report 7, Relocation Order, Branigan Road Realignment   

 

 



April 6 Staff Report 7, Relocation Order, Branigan Road Realignment   

 



April 6 Staff Report 7, Relocation Order, Branigan Road Realignment   

 



April 6 Staff Report 7, Relocation Order, Branigan Road Realignment   

 


	3. Certified Survey Map – 2401 Stateline Road
	Review and consideration of a two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 2401 Stateline Road in the City of Beloit
	4. Stormwater and Drainage Way Easement – 555 Willowbrook Road
	Review and consideration of a request to grant a Stormwater and Drainage Way Easement to Hendricks Commercial Properties, LLC along the southern edge of the property located at 555 Willowbrook Road
	5. Conditional Use Permit – 549 Shirland Avenue
	Public hearing, review and consideration of a Conditional Use Permit to allow a fitness studio for the property located at 549 Shirland Avenue (103 Eighth Street)
	6. Planned Unit Development (PUD) Master Land Use Plan Amendment – 1810 Sutler Avenue – Tractor Supply (former Staples store)
	Public hearing, review and consideration of an amendment to the Planned Unit Development (PUD) Master Land Use Plan to allow for outdoor display areas within the Morgan Square shopping center for the property located at 1810 Sutler Avenue
	7. Relocation Order – Branigan Road Re-alignment
	Review and consideration of a Relocation Order to acquire Right-of-Way (ROW) and a Temporary Limited Easement (TLE) over a portion of 2851 Milwaukee Road (Menards) and a TLE over a portion of 2785 Milwaukee Road (Walmart) in order to Realign the Brani...

